TOWN OF MINNESOTT BEACH
PLANNING BOARD MEETING
NOVEMBER 7, 2013

MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman Buddy Belangia, Rich Beland, Cliff Braly, Dennis Humenik
and Mac Rubel.

MEMBERS ABSENT: None

OTHERS PRESENT: Commissioner Larry Whorton, Ben Hollowell on behalf of Bennett
Landing Townhouses and Cathy Hurm — Town Manager/Clerk.

Chairman Belangia called the meeting of the Planning Board to order at 5:30 pm.
Chairman Belangia presented the agenda.

The minutes for November 1, 2012 were presented. Rich Beland motioned to accept the minutes
from the November 1, 2012 meeting, second by Chiff Braly, all ayes. Motion passed.

Public Comments: None

Chairman Belangia addressed Mr. Hollowell regarding the request that had been submitted on
behalf of the owner/developers of Bennett Landing to convert the development from
condominiums to townhouses. Chairman Belangia stated that as he understood, there would be
no other changes and the buildings meet the County standards for townhomes. Mr. Hollowell
advised there are no other changes, just the designation from condominiums to townhomes, and
the County had previously approved a similar change about eight months ago in Oriental. Mr.
Rubel inquired if it was the same and Mr. Hollowell said it was the exact same thing. Mr.
Beland inquired if al! the owners were in agreement to this change. Mr. Hollowell advised that
the three owners and the developer have all signed a termination agreement, terminating the
condominiums and converting to townhouses, and agreed to proceed. Mr. Beland asked about the
benefit of converting from condominiums to townhomes. Mr. Hollowell stated that Fannie Mae
has come out with regulations which make it difficult for potential buyers to qualify for a loan to
purchase a condominium which do not apply to townhouses. Mr. Beland inquired 1f the builder
would be continuing to maintain the property to which Mr. Hollowell replied “absolute]y™.
Chairman Belangia asked about any changes to the by-laws, or covenants and Mr. Hollowell said
there would be no changes other than the designation from condominiums to townhouses. Mr.
Humenik inquired about the pier that had been lost during a storm and if the developet/property
owner was to have replaced the pier, if there was a deal with the owners that the pier would
always be there. Mr. Hollowell said no, the pier was a mistake in the way it was built tn that the
developer/owners at the time were not familiar with the area and how it should have been
constructed but either way it was not an agreement that there would be a pier at this location.
Then followed discussion among Planning Board (PB) members of the damage that was done to
neighboring piers and what had to be done for repairs when that pier dislodged and floated down
nver.

Mr. Rubel reiterated for clarification that basically it was being changed from a condominium
corporation to townhomes so that the pads and structure will be owned outright by the
individuals. Mr. Hollowell explained that with a condominium you own the airspace between
the walls but with a townhouse you own the footprint and structure. Mr. Hollowell believed this

Page 1 of 4



TOWN OF MINNESOTT BEACH
PLANNING BOARD MEETING
NOVEMBER 7, 2013

was the issue with lenders in that a person owning a structure would be more responsible
regarding the maintenance and upkeep of the property. Mr. Rubel inquired about any necessity
for changes in the homeowners’ agreement. Mr. Hollowell said it would be revised but would be
very similar to what was already in place and he had a draft which he offered to the PB for
review. Mr. Hollowell said that when a new deed was recorded, the common areas would be
included in the deeds to the homeowners, whereas with a condominium you do not deed the
common areas to the homeowners. Mr. Rubel explained that a large concern was the
maintenance of the property. Mr. Rubel expressed interest in reviewing the changes between the
condominium and townhouse agreements. Mr. Hollowell advised they are very similar with
changes being definitions, i.c. owners now own a lot as opposed to a unit, but that roughly 80 —
90 percent of the agreements are the same. Mr. Rubel felt the PB should review these
agreements as he believed this to be a fundamental issue, prior to approving the conversion. Mr.
Rubel recommended delaying a decision for a couple of weeks to allow the PB to review the
papers and then reconvene prior to the Board of Commissioners (BOC) meeting to compile their
findings and recommendation.

Chairman Belangia asked for someone to resume responsibility for reviewing the documents and
advising the PB. Mr. Rubel stated he would be happy to handle. Chairman Belangia inquired
about the possibility that if there were no additional questions or concerns which arose within the
next couple of weeks, could it be assumed that the PB had no objections to approving. Mr. Braly
asked if it would be necessary to meet again to reach a final consensus regarding the PB’s
recommendation unless something came up could it be considered a conditional approval.
Commissioner Whorton said the BOC would want a written recommendation from the B
whether they met again or not. Mr. Rubel recommended that ail PB members review the papers
and unless someone came up with a concern which needed to be addressed then there could be
conditional approval and then meet in two weeks to compile their recommendation. Mr. Beland
recommended they not meet unless there is an issue and just consider it approved. Mr. Whorton
advised they should let the Town Manager know of their decision so that she can construct a
document with the PB’s recommendation to be presented to the BOC. A motion was made by
Rich Beland that a conditional recommendation for approval be given to the request from
Bennett Landing unless an issue was uncovered during the review of the documents provided by
Mr. Hollowell. Mac Rubel seconded, all ayes, motion passed. There being no further discussion
regarding Bennett Landing Townhouses, Chairman Belangia moved forward regarding the Code
of Ordinances.

Commissioner Whorton advised the PB that the town may change/update the Unified Code of
Ordinances (UDO) once a year. The PB was being requested to provide input regarding areas of
concern which had been brought to the attention of the BOC or which they may wish to have
addressed. Chairman Belangia reviewed the areas of concern regarding the Code of Ordinances
which included; Filing fees — Section 151.328 and 151.331; Fences — Sections 151.181 C (1) and
151.210; wording of Section 151.373; definitions of attached/detached units; and application of
setbacks for other than resident or accessory buildings.

Page 2 of 4



TOWN OF MINNESOTT BEACH
PLANNING BOARD MEETING
NOVEMBER 7, 2013

Following discussion regarding Filing fees, Mac Rubel recommended that Section 151.328 and
151.331 be changed to note there are no refunds on filing fees but changes in the plat may incur
additional cost.

Discussion was then held regarding the definition of attached/detached as to whether it referred
to units being attached at the roof, with porches, common foundation or common walls.
Commissioner Whorton advised that he believed a precedence had been previously set with the
decision which had been made regarding the construction of the home of Mr. and Mrs. Greg
Murphy. Commissioner Whorton furthered that clarification/determination of the definition
would impact on future construction not on construction which has already been approve.
Commissioner Whorton advised that the BOC would like a recommendation from the PB as to
how the PB would define attached/detached. Commissioner Whorton stated the town’s attorney
had advised the definition of attached/detached was how the town wanted to define the terms.
CIliff Braly offered to get information from the NC Department of Insurance (DOI) regarding
their definition of attached/detached for the PB to review and assist in determining the definition
for the UDO.

Mac Rubel noted that definition seem to be dispersed throughout the UDO and inquired of
Commissioner Whorton if the definitions within the UDO could be consolidated into one area.
Commissioner Whorton suggested that consolidating definitions be added to the
recommendations from the PB for changes to the UDO.

Sections 151.181 C (1) and 151.210 regarding fences were then discussed. The need for a fence
on an above ground pool was an issue of concern presented to the PB. Mac Rubel stated that
there was a corporate liability concern in that our policy should be consistent with the state
policy. Mr. Rubel wanted time to review state regulations before making a decision. Mr. Braly
advised he would also check with DOI regarding pools. Mac Rubel then presented the question
regarding fence height within the setback line and on corner lots restrictions as they pertain to
rear and side heights. Chairman Belangia suggested that once the information is received from
DOI and the PB makes their recommendation, that it also include there be a limitation of height
to six feet for all fences. Types of fences and materials were discussed with a general consensus
being the town should not be involved in that decision.

A question arose regarding a slab being placed in an area considered within the setback for
placement of equipment, i.e. generator, if this area should also meet the same setbacks for
structures. It was determined that setback requirements apply to structures consisting of four
walls and there was no requirement to meet specific setback under these circumstances.
Recommended this section not be changed.

As for the wording of Section 151.373, it was determined that the wording is difficult to
understand but there were no recommendations as to how it could be reworded to help clarify.

Mac Rubel expressed concern as to how the section on Residential Mixed Use (RMU) was
written but there was no further discussion regarding this matter. Mr. Rubel stated he felt the

Page 3 of' 4



TOWN OF MINNESOTT BEACH
PLANNING BOARD MEETING
NOVEMBER 7,2013

UDG was a work in progress and that further discussion/decisions be delayed until the next
meeting and the recommendations of the PB be compiled at that time.

Commissioner Whorton requested a few minutes to go over some items since he believed this
would probably be his last time to meet with the PB, inasmuch as he had elected not to run for
the upcoming term. Comumissioner Whorton expressed his appreciation to the PB members on
their willingness to serve and acknowledged the expertise that he felt the PB now possessed.
Commissioner Whorton reminded the PB of issues that are pending that may arise in the future
and provided some background regarding these issues. These included: Wayfarers Cove plats on
the Marina side and South Lake side; and Arlington Place and the bond that is currently being
held for the building of roads/infrastructure. Commissioner Whorton made a recommendation
that for any future development the town not accept a bond for the infrastructure but make it a
condition of what must be done before development starts.

Chairman Belangia inquired if there was any other business. There being none, Buddy Belangia

moved to adjourn, second by Mac Rubel, all ayes. Chairman Belangia announced the meeting
adjourned.

Catherine Hurm, Town Manager/Clerk

Page 4 of 4



